
Adult Commissioning Committee 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Adult Commissioning Committee to be 
held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
DATE: Wednesday, 9 October 2019

TIME: 3.00 pm

VENUE: The Salford Room - St James's House Pendleton Way Salford M6 5FW.

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014,’ the 
press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record this meeting. 

AGENDA

3:00PM - MEETING TO OPEN 

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 11 September 2019 (Pages 1 - 6)

4  Patient Story - 5 minutes 

3:10PM - ITEMS FOR DECISION 

5  Elective Orthopaedic Capacity - Harry Golby - 20 minutes (Pages 7 - 16)

3:30PM - ITEMS FOR ASSURANCE 

6  Verbal Finance Report - Steve Dixon - 15 minutes 

7  NHS Continuing Healthcare & NHS Funded Nursing Care Annual 
Report - Jacquie Purser - 15 minutes 

(Pages 17 - 30)

4:00PM - ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

8  Briefing Update - Adult Commissioning Report - Karen Proctor - 
15 minutes 

(Pages 31 - 38)

Public Document Pack



9  Briefing Update - Planned Care - Annette Donegani - 10 minutes (Pages 39 - 50)

10  Any Other Business - Chair - 10 minutes 

11  Time, Date and Location of Future Meetings 

3:00pm on Wednesday 6 November 2019 – Civic Centre, Salford Suite;
3:00pm on Wednesday 8 January 2020 - St James’ House;
3:00pm on Wednesday 12 February 2020 – Civic Centre, Salford Suite;
3:00pm on Wednesday 11 March 2020 – St James’ House.

4:30PM - MEETING TO CLOSE 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



Minutes of the Adult Commissioning Committee (ACC)
meeting held on 11 September 2019 in the Salford Room, St James’ House

Present:

Dr Peter Brambleby (PB) Interim Director of Public Health
Mr Steve Dixon (SD) Chief Finance Officer - CCG
Mr David Flinn (DF) Neighbourhood Lead - CCG
Mrs Joanne Hardman (JoH) Chief Finance Officer - SCC
Cllr Bill Hinds (BH) Lead Member for Finance & Support Services - SCC
Dr David McKelvey (DM) Neighbourhood Lead - CCG
Mrs Karen Proctor (KP) Director of Commissioning - CCG
Mrs Charlotte Ramsden (CR) Strategic Director People - SCC
Dr Tom Regan (TR) Clinical Director for Commissioning - CCG
Cllr Gina Reynolds (GR) Lead Member for Adult Services, Health & Wellbeing - 

SCC – co-chair
Dr Jeremy Tankel (JT) Medical Director - CCG – in the chair
Mrs Francine Thorpe (FT) Director of Quality and Innovation - CCG

In attendance:

Mr Andy Briffa (AB) ASC Procurement & Market Management Lead
Ms Amanda Rafferty (AR) Senior Manager Engagement and Inclusion
Mr Paul Walsh (PW) Head of Integrated Commissioning – CCG/SCC
Ms C Eddleston (CE) Senior Democratic Services Advisor – SCC

Apologies for Absence:

Cllr Jane Hamilton (JH) Executive Support for Social Care & Mental Health - SCC
Mr Anthony Hassall (AH) Chief Accountable Officer - CCG
Mr Harry Golby (HG) Assistant Director of Commissioning - CCG
Cllr Tracy Kelly (TK) Lead Member for Housing & Neighbourhoods – SCC
Ms Gillian Mclauchlan Consultant in Public Health
Mr Judd Skelton (JS) Assistant Director - Integrated Commissioning - 

CCG/SCC
Ms Claire Vaughan (CV) Head of Medicines Optimisation

1. Declarations of Interest

1.1 There were no declarations of interest in any of the items on the agenda.

2. Minutes of the Last Meeting

2.1 The minutes of the meeting held on 10 July 2019 were approved as a correct record.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



3. Patient Story

3.1 The ACC heard the story of 92 year old Jozef who was registered blind and had severe 
hearing impairment. After ten days in hospital earlier in the year he was discharged with 
several small boxes of medication but was at risk of either repeating doses or not taking 
any at all due to his sight loss and memory loss. After a number of interventions from 
the Communicator Guide within Salford Sensory Team with the GP surgery and 
pharmacy, and 23 days after the initial request, Jozef finally received blister packs with 
which he was delighted as they were ‘handy as a calendar. I forget what the day is 
sometimes’.

4. Business Case – Learning Disabilities Supported Housing

4.1 PW presented the report on the feasibility assessment of the Great Places Learning 
Disability Supported Housing proposal. The proposal would progress into a project 
development phase that would comprise a capital development strand and a service 
development strand, both of which would require further appropriate governance 
approvals. The proposal was to establish two Supported Housing Schemes in Walkden, 
in partnership with Great Places Housing Group, to provide accommodation, support 
and regulated care services for two different Learning Disability client groups. Great 
Places had secured a grant from Homes England of approximately £2.6m against a total 
build cost of £4.9m with Great Places taking a 40 year loan of £2m.

4.2 GR confirmed that she and TK (Lead Member for Housing and Neighbourhoods) were 
fully supportive of the proposals. The Walkden South councillors had raised concerns, in 
particular poor land drainage, anti-social behaviour in the area and whether there was 
capacity at local GP practices. They were keen for robust engagement with residents 
regarding these plans.

4.3 SD stressed that it was not within the remit of this committee to agree on land disposal 
or valuation as it fell to the city council to negotiate and agree these with Great Places. 
Whilst the timelines outlined in the report reflected the Homes England grant conditions, 
the committee was assured that any decision to proceed would only be taken after full 
due process had been followed.

4.4 In response to a question from DF about the build cost per unit, it was confirmed that the 
costs were consistent with similar schemes in Manchester and surveyors from the 
Council’s Urban Vision had provided reassurance on this.

4.5 PW confirmed that a detailed Social Value assessment was yet to be made but agreed 
with observations from members of the committee that there were significant Social 
Value gains to be made from the proposals.

4.6 The committee acknowledged that whilst these proposals would meet some of the 
current need, there would undoubtedly be increased demand in the longer term and 
further proposals would come forward for consideration in the future.

4.7 The ACC approved Option 2 and agreed that the proposal should progress into 
the project development phase.

ACTION: PW and DMcK to discuss Social Value aspects with a view to 
incorporating these in the proposals

Page 2



5. Additional Care Home Fees for Hospitality Charges Above Care Requirements 

5.1 FT/SD presented a report which provided background information on a specific request 
made to Salford CCG to pay additional costs for Continuing Health Care patients related 
to faith requirements. The report also presented a general policy on additional fees over 
and above care requirements that covered all services commissioned across health and 
care in Salford. The ACC was informed that the weekly placement rate set by the CCG 
was based on nursing need and patients/families could choose to pay a top-up for 
bespoke requests including, for example, room size/facilities/location.

5.2 In relation to the case outlined in the report, Commissioners had assured themselves 
that there were places available at another care home in the city that would meet 
patients’ cultural needs more cost effectively.

5.3 The ACC noted the contents of the report and agreed to the recommendation in 
the policy not to fund additional fees related to hospitality charges not related to 
care requirements that would be applicable to all commissioned health and care 
services in Salford.

6. SALFORD 2019/20 BCF PLAN

6.1 KP presented the proposed Salford 2019/20 Better Care Fund (BCF) plan submission to 
NHS England. The ACC was reminded that the BCF formed part of the wider Salford 
integrated health and care budget so the plan described work which was already 
ongoing or planned and would not affect any current services. 

6.2 The submission had been created with input from a number of colleagues from Salford 
CCG, Salford City Council and Salford Together and KP thanked Tori Quinn for her 
extensive work in leading on the compilation. KP confirmed that Salford’s submissions in 
previous years had been fully approved and there was no reason to believe that this 
year’s submission would not be approved. 

6.3 The ACC reviewed the proposed submission and approved the document for 
submission. 

7. Finance Report

7.1 SD presented the report which included an update on the 2019/20 financial performance 
of the Integrated Fund for Adult Services and an update on the additional funding 
approved for Adult Social Care, including benefits realisation, latest forecast spend 
position and approval from the national team on the Better Care Fund (BCF). 

7.2 The report was based on month 4 (July 2019) finance information. Based on the latest 
information, the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund was currently forecasting to 
overspend by £0.8m in 2019/20, which was an improvement of £1.5m from the finance 
report presented to the July meeting which had a forecast year end overspend of £2.4m.

7.3 In response to a question from JT, SD confirmed that the risk share agreement with 
Salford Royal Foundation Trust would continue, as Adult Social Care was now a part of 
SRFT’s core business and, whilst the trust would argue that demand was increasing, it 
was aiming to further integrate community services and improve efficiency. 

Page 3



7.4 SRFT had been asked to draw up Cost Improvement Plans which would be reported to 
the committee so that commissioners could be assured that the quest to make savings 
would not impact on quality.

7.5 The ACC noted the in-year and forecast position for the adults’ Integrated Fund 
for 2019/20.

8. Adult Commissioning Report

8.1 KP presented the report which provided an overview of a number of key or emerging 
areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure the 
ACC was kept abreast of developments and progress. The areas featured were: new 
Mental Health Crisis Bed provision; recommendation from IVF procurement and 
mobilisation of Salford Lung Health Check pilot.

8.2 Current mental health crisis bed provision was one bed, with access and support via the 
Home Based Treatment Team, 9am to 5pm Monday to Friday. The new provision, 
funded following a successful bid to Greater Manchester, would strengthen the crisis 
pathway by providing two crisis beds, with staff available 24/7 if needed, to support 
people in crisis, prevent hospital admission and facilitate hospital discharge. This in turn 
would allow the use of beds within the Meadowbank inpatient unit to be diverted. 

8.3 The ACC noted the outcome of the procurement process for IVF treatment and noted 
the difference in the maximum number of IVF cycles commissioned by GM CCGs and 
noted that there were no plans to change Salford’s commissioning of policy of two 
cycles. 

8.4 KP reported that more than 1000 Lung Health Check invitations had been issued to the 
eligible population within three practices and over 200 appointments had already been 
arranged. It was confirmed that the >1.5% prostate, colorectal, lung and ovarian cancer 
risk threshold was being used to refer patients onward for a CT lung scan.

8.5 The ACC considered that annual monitoring of the service would be appropriate, 
including the number of false positives and false negatives.

8.6 The ACC noted the report.

ACTION: KP agreed to provide an update at a future meeting on the work that was 
ongoing with Greater Manchester Police in dealing with people in mental health 
crisis, as part of the scheduled Mental Health Update

KP agreed to ascertain how individuals were supported in their choice of provider 
for IVF treatment.

9. Locality Plan Refresh

9.1 PB provided a verbal update on the refresh of the Locality Plan which was now three 
years old. The refresh had begun with a co-production event with the Health and 
Wellbeing Board and there had been a significant amount of public engagement since. 

9.2 The new Locality Plan would retain the strands of ‘Start Well’, ‘Live Well’ and ‘Age Well’ 
but would now be presented in five main chapters. It would look not just at mortality and 
life expectancy but also at healthy life expectancy and ‘dying well’.

Page 4



9.3 The Locality Plan would explain Salford’s plans to build on what was already in place so 
that services would work better and more efficiently, give local people a bigger role in 
looking after their own health and look at how people’s lives in the city could change for 
the better with better housing, more jobs, more money and a nicer living environment.

9.4 The ACC welcomed the work currently underway to refresh the Locality Plan and 
looked forward to a further update at a future meeting.

10. Briefing Note – Breaches of the Four Hour A&E Target

10.1 As requested at the last meeting the ACC was provided with a breakdown on breaches 
of the four hour A&E target, including range of waiting times and cohort of patients 
involved. The briefing note provided information that focused on the top 10 clinical 
conditions linked to creating breaches, therefore preventing Salford Royal Foundation 
Trust (SRFT) from meeting the 95% four-hour target that all A&E departments had to 
achieve across England.

10.2 The ACC considered the briefing note but acknowledged that it was not the presenting 
condition that caused a breach of the target. Members considered that it would be 
helpful to identify if patients were attending for the first or second time for the same 
condition and what proportion of patients who were presenting at A&E for the first time 
with conditions which could have been dealt with elsewhere. KP confirmed that it would 
be possible to look at whether they were a first or second/subsequent time attendee and 
SD confirmed that this would form part of a bigger data analysis as part of the urgent 
care redesign work

10.3 Whilst it was very difficult to turn people away, it was confirmed that SRFT had regular 
meetings to discuss their regular attendees and how best to try to get them to modify 
their behaviour. 

11. Integrated Community Based Care Strategy Group Update Report

11.1 TR provided an update on the work programme of the Integrated Community Based 
Care Commissioning Group over the period of January 2019 to July 2019. 

11.2 The update on the Salford Wide Extended Access Pilot (SWEAP) prompted a number 
of questions from the committee and TR confirmed that Salford Primary Care Together, 
which ran the service, had been challenged on a number of issues, including the 
number of appointments offered as compared with that laid out in the contract . SPCT 
had submitted an Improvement Plan to address a number of areas for improvement, 
including improving appointment provision and utilisation and reducing DNA rates, and 
had been given time to implement changes.

11.3 SD reported that less than 50% of the commissioned activity was being offered but 
confirmed that SPCT was only being paid for the slots that were made available 
(whether they were used or not). This payment covered all the staffing capacity that was 
used to deliver the service, whether it be GPs, Advanced Nurse Practitioners or 
phlebotomists etc.

11.4 It was accepted that there was a variation in utilisation across neighbourhoods, and 
from practice to practice, in terms of how the extended access was being promoted, 

Page 5



given that there were 42 different practices across the city with differing needs and 
opinions on how general practice should operate.

11.5 Final evaluation of SWEAP by the National Institute for Health Research Collaboration 
for Leadership in Applied Health Research and Care (CLAHRC) was due to be 
submitted to the CCG at the end of September. 

11.3 The ACC noted the information provided in the update report.

12. Briefing Update – Homecare in Salford

12.1 The ACC received a presentation on progress made within home care since re-
tendering in July 2018. The presentation updated the ACC on the context and 
configuration of home care, assurance structure, meeting contract standards, ethical 
care, provider performance and plans for 2019/20.

12.2 The committee welcomed the significant increase in the number of staff on fixed hours 
contracts and noted that only 33 care staff out of approximately 350 did not want fixed 
hours. AB explained that the information provided by the four contractors was currently 
being validated.

12.3 It was confirmed that a report on performance against the service specification would 
be presented to the ACC in quarter two.

12.3 The ACC noted the information provided in the presentation, welcomed in 
particular the progress in relation to guaranteed hours contracts and looked 
forward to a performance report at a future meeting.

13. Any Other Business

There were no items of any other business.

14. Time, Date and Location of Future Meetings

14.1 The following dates were noted:

3:00pm on Wednesday 9 October 2019 - St James’ House;
3:00pm on Wednesday 6 November 2019 – Civic Centre, Salford Suite;
3:00pm on Wednesday 8 January 2020 - St James’ House;
3:00pm on Wednesday 12 February 2020 – Civic Centre, Salford Suite;
3:00pm on Wednesday 11 March 2020 – St James’ House.

Page 6



 

1

Adult Commissioning Committee 
PART I 

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5
Item for Decision/Assurance/Information 

Report of: Assistant Director of Commissioning

Date of Paper: 30 September 2019

Subject: Salford Elective Orthopaedic Capacity

In case of query 
Please contact:

Harry Golby, Assistant Director of 
Commissioning, CCG
0161 212 6161
harry.golby@nhs.net 

Purpose of Paper:

This paper provides the background, context and options to respond to Manchester 
University NHS Foundation Trust decision to serve notice on Salford Royal NHS 
Foundation Trust for the use of the Manchester Elective Orthopaedic Centre.

A ‘preferred option’ has emerged and is described, although this remains subject to 
detailed sign-off. 

Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to note the ‘preferred option’ and consider 
patient engagement, system-wide communications and areas where further assurance will 
be required.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

mailto:harry.golby@nhs.net


2

Salford Elective Orthopaedic Capacity

1. Executive Summary

This paper provides the background, context and options to respond to Manchester 
University NHS Foundation Trust (MFT) decision to serve notice on Salford Royal NHS 
Foundation Trust (SRFT) for the use of the Manchester Elective Orthopaedic Centre 
(MEOC).

A ‘preferred option’ has emerged and is described, although this remains subject to 
detailed sign-off. 

Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to note the ‘preferred option’ and consider 
patient engagement, system-wide communications and areas where further assurance will 
be required.

2. Background

2.1. In November 2014 Salford CCG supported a proposal by SRFT to relocate some 
elective orthopaedic capacity to the MEOC on the Trafford General Hospital site.  

2.2. The primary anticipated benefit was enhanced service quality.  “Getting it Right First 
Time1” (2012) by Prof. Tim Briggs, Consultant Orthopaedic Surgeon, Royal National 
Orthopaedic Hospital describes the evidence around the development of specialist 
centres to improve patient experience and outcomes for elective orthopaedic surgery.  
It was anticipated that creation of an elective-only orthopaedic service with ring 
fenced theatre and bed capacity would enable efficient scheduling of activity thus 
ensuring reliability and timeliness of care and minimising cancellations of surgery.    
In addition the relocation created capacity on the SRFT site to support other 
developments e.g. major trauma and stroke.

2.3. An evaluation by the CCG after 6 months was inconclusive – some of the intended 
benefits were yet to be seen and it was too early to assess others.  However a review 
by Healthwatch Salford found the overall experience of patients had been positive, 
and this informed a decision to continue the arrangement.  

3. Current Position

3.1. SRFT delivered 2560 surgical interventions at MEOC in 2018 (1897 as an inpatient 
and 663 as a day case).  This equates to approximately one third of SRFT’s total day 
case orthopaedic activity, and just over one half of the inpatient activity.  Most of the 
rest of the activity currently takes place on the SRFT main hospital site, with some ad 
hoc use of private sector capacity.  Outpatient care for both groups of patients is 

1 http://www.gettingitrightfirsttime.com/ 

Page 8

http://www.gettingitrightfirsttime.com/


3

predominantly delivered in Salford.  Just over 40% of SRFT’s total activity is for 
patients of other localities.

3.2. MEOC does not have the facilities required to support patients who require more 
complex surgery and / or have co-morbidities leading to higher anaesthetic risk.

3.3. Despite some periods of improvement, Salford’s orthopaedic performance has 
deteriorated since the establishment of the MEOC. 

The key national measure of elective waiting time performance is the percentage of 
people who have an incomplete pathway (i.e. have not received first definitive 
treatment) 18 weeks after their referral.  Salford CCG has not achieved the 92% 
national standard since April 2017. 

Apr-15 Oct-15 Apr-16 Oct-16 Apr-17 Oct-17 Apr-18 Oct-18 Apr-19
84

86

88

90

92

94

96

Salford CCG - Orthopaedic RTT Performance
% incomplete pathways within 18 weeks

Month

%

Another measure is the total number on waiting lists.  The national expectation is that 
the total number waiting should not exceed March 2018 levels.  Orthopaedic waiting 
lists have increased (SRFT and Oaklands figures include non-Salford patients).  

March 18 June 19 Increase (n) Increase (%)
Salford CCG 3050 3995 945 31%
SRFT 5230 6386 1156 22%
Oaklands 885 1379 494 56%

The impact of MEOC on quality and patient outcomes has not been formally 
reviewed.

3.4. The waiting list issues indicate SRFT’s activity levels will need to increase if waiting 
time standards are to be achieved, unless demand falls significantly. SRFT’s activity 
levels, for Salford patients, has been relatively stable since 2016/17.  

Page 9



4

3.5. On 30th July 2019 MFT served notice on the MEOC service level agreement with 
SRFT.  The letter (Appendix 1) states all SRFT activity will need to cease at MEOC, 
and alternative arrangements will need to be established, by 31 January 2020.

3.6. A project has commenced to review options and establish the alternative 
arrangements.  The CCG is represented on the project group and updates have been 
requested by the Scheduled Care Delivery Board.  

3.7. As a surgical specialty orthopaedics is an “aligned” service within Salford’s integrated 
commissioning arrangements.  This means decision making responsibility rests with 
the CCG and has been delegated to the Adults Commissioning Committee.  This 
does not affect the Council’s statutory responsibilities in terms of health overview and 
scrutiny.

3. Context 

3.1. This change is taking place against the context of several other developments since 
SRFT began to use MEOC.

3.2. The Greater Manchester Improving Specialised Care Programme has been 
developed to create “single shared services” for certain acute and specialist services 
to deliver improvements in patient outcomes and productivity.  Orthopaedics is one of 
the specialties within the ISC programme.  No decisions have been made and there 
is an expectation that the programme will require formal public consultation, prior to 
decision making at the Greater Manchester Joint Commissioning Board.  

The service model for orthopaedics proposes the development of centres of 
excellence across Greater Manchester.  Four types of sites are to be identified 
ranging from Wrightington, the super specialist site undertaking the most complex 
joint replacement, etc., to all local hospital sites undertaking local day case surgery 
such as diagnostic arthroscopy and carpal tunnel surgery, etc.  In January 2019 the 
Joint Commissioning Board agreed 2 orthopaedic options should be modelled.  Both 
options include Fairfield Hospital as a joint centre undertaking some inpatient surgery 
for example non-complex primary joint replacement, therapeutic arthroscopy, plastic 
repair of rotator cuff, etc. 

3.3. In April 2017 the Northern Care Alliance NHS Group was launched.  The NCA is a 
partnership between SRFT and Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust.  It brings 
together five hospitals (Salford Royal, the Royal Oldham, Fairfield General, Rochdale 
Infirmary and North Manchester General) and the associated community services.  
This creates different opportunities for SRFT to identify alternative elective 
orthopaedic capacity within the NCA group.

In response to the GM proposed model of care, the NCA’s 2018 Service 
Development Strategy describes a single orthopaedic service delivering activity 
across all NCA sites. This describes the creation of a single service operating across 
the NCA and, building on the opportunity to develop Fairfield as a GM joint centre, 
separation of orthopaedic elective activity from trauma to ring fence high volume 
activity.

Page 10



5

3.4. The NCA group and ISC programme are significant because, whilst no decisions 
have yet been made, the work to date indicates Fairfield will remain a site for elective 
orthopaedic inpatient surgery.  It is the only such site within the NCA group (other 
sites will continue to provide non-elective surgery).  Some of the patient cohort who 
currently have orthopaedic surgery at MEOC are likely to only be able to have 
surgery at a joint centre, such as Fairfield, in the long term.  More sites will be 
suitable for patients who have less complex, day case surgery.

3.5. SRFT, as the Principal Receiving Site for Greater Manchester Major Trauma 
Services requires a large orthopaedic workforce with specialist skills to deliver 
complex trauma. To provide adequate support to the PRS a 24 person rota was 
introduced in February 2019.  This saw an increase in the workforce, which in the 
immediate term left a shortfall in theatre session availability to match the scheduled 
job plan sessions for elective sessions and to a lesser extent trauma sessions.  
Capacity constraints on both the SRFT and the MEOC sites mean there is a small 
shortfall in theatre sessions for the consultant workforce.  If the plans to reprovide the 
MEOC capacity can also identify these additional sessions this will help reverse the 
deteriorating waiting list position.

4. Options Appraisal 

4.1. During August the NCA convened a working group to consider issues and 
understand options.  The group included a broad range of expertise, including 
orthopaedic surgeons, anaesthetists, nurses, operational and strategic managers, 
facilities and HR specialists, etc.  The CCG was also represented.

4.2. The working group has considered options for the reprovision of the MEOC activity at 
SRFT and other NCA sites (e.g. Fairfield).  Further use of capacity within the private 
sector (e.g. Oaklands), as well as capacity within other NHS providers, has also been 
considered.

4.3. In total 11 options were explored and considered using the following criteria:
 Feasible within timescale (31st January 2020)
 Clinical assessment of suitability 
 Estates assessment of suitability 
 Capacity released by option and extent to which this meets requirements 
 Capital / Revenue costs
 Distance for patients to travel and transport options
 Impact on workforce including travel
 Strategic Fit – supports development of NCA Orthopaedics and Joint Centre

4.4. None of the options, in isolation, fully address the issue.  The working group 
therefore identified the following which, in combination, form the preferred option:

Site Activity description Comments
Salford (i.e 
SRFT and 
Oaklands)

Local day case surgery for ‘upper 
limb & hands’ and for ‘foot and 
ankle’

Oaklands capacity available
SRFT capacity will have 
knock on effect to other 
specialties

Page 11



6

Fairfield Inpatient ‘lower limb soft tissue & 
arthroplasty’, some ‘reconstruction’ 
and day case ‘list fillers’

Theatre and bed capacity, 
potential knock on effect to 
other specialties 

Other (private / 
NHS) 
providers

Most likely to utilise as interim 
capacity once preferred option and 
timelines confirmed.

-

Further consultation is required with the consultant body to confirm how best to utilise 
the additional capacity (e.g. detail of how to organise lists and job plans, etc.)

4.5. The NCA Executive Team considered the matter in the week commencing 23 
September.  The preferred option was agreed subject to capital costs and 
timescales.  (Commissioners pay for orthopaedic activity on a tariff basis so 
commissioner budgets will only be affected to the extent that any changes lead to 
under- or over-performance against the contract.)

4.6. However the preferred option cannot be fully implemented by the end of January, 
detailed timescales for each element are being worked up.  A letter has therefore 
been sent to MFT requesting an extension to the MEOC site.

4.7. If this extension is not agreed a further plan will be required to address the short term 
pressures.

5. Discussion

5.1. The MEOC discussions are a timely illustration of the implications of the broader 
Greater Manchester Improving Specialist Care programme.  Considerable progress 
has been made within a relatively short period of time to identify a preferred option. 

5.2. The CCG has offered SRFT support to assist with patient engagement.  It is 
anticipated that patient engagement will be undertaken once the preferred option has 
been confirmed.  The results of patient engagement exercises carried out around the 
time of the establishment of the MEOC have been revisited.  Key highlights from the 
previous work included:
 patient transport, especially for people with specific needs or limited income,
 support and information provided pre and post operation,
 clear communications to ensure patients are aware of their options as early as 

possible in their pathway,
 other factors that affect patient experience (e.g. waiting times on the day of 

surgery, cleanliness, access for visitors, etc.)

5.3. System wide communications will be required once the preferred option and 
timescales have been confirmed.  These should include:
 Health and social care scrutiny panel (a briefing note has been shared with the 

chair and discussion scheduled for 6 November),
 Healthwatch (a briefing note has been shared with the Chief Executive),
 Referrers (e.g. GPs and MSK CATS service) to ensure patients are aware of the 

situation as soon as possible in their pathway, and

Page 12



7

 Other localities, especially those which account for a significant proportion of the 
non-Salford patients.

5.4. Learning from the MEOC transfer other key considerations from a commissioner 
perspective include:
 Additional considerations for those patients with protected characteristics, 
 Assurance that the preferred option secures sufficient capacity to meet demand 

and is not underpinned by unrealistic assumptions about improved productivity,
 Assurance that appropriate processes are in place to ensure quality by 

identifying, reporting and addressing quality issues as they emerge,
 Consideration of issues throughout the pathway, for example clear pathways for 

discharge and follow-up into local services,

4. Recommendations

4.1. Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to:
 Note the paper,
 Note the intention to carry out patient engagement once the preferred options 

have been confirmed and to discuss the matter at the Health and Social Care 
Scrutiny Panel on 6 November,

 Note the intention to carry out system wide communications, once the preferred 
options and timescales have been confirmed,

 Provide feedback on the preferred option and specifically consider whether there 
are other issues, in addition to those identified in paragraph 5.4, where 
commissioners require additional assurance.

4.2. Adult Commissioning Committee will receive further updates, as appropriate, via 
Scheduled Care Delivery Board. 

Harry Golby
Assistant Director of Commissioning
Salford CCG

Page 13



8Page 14



9

Appendix 1 – Notice to Terminate

Page 15



10Page 16



 

Page | 1 

ADULT COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM NO: 7

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information 

DATE OF MEETING:  9 OCTOBER 2019

Report of: Head of NHS Funded Nursing Care 

Date of Paper: 27th September 2019

Subject: NHS Continuing Healthcare & NHS 
Funded Nursing Care Annual Report

In case of query 
Please contact: Jacquie Purser 

0161 212 4240

Strategic Priorities: Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to:

 Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research

 Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services)
Children’s and Maternity Services
Primary Care
Enabling Transformation

Purpose of Paper:                                   
This is an annual report on the delivery of NHS Salford CCG’s statutory duties in relation to 
the National Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare (CHC) and NHS Funded Nursing 
Care.  Activity and finance information is included for the 2018/19 financial year

RECOMMENDATION OF THIS PAPER:

Adult Commissioning Committee is recommended:
•  to note this update report on NHS Continuing Healthcare and NHS Funded Nursing Care 
   in Salford

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 

Page | 2 

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

None

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

None

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

None

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT 
ARE THEY AND HOW DOES THIS 
PAPER REDUCE THEM?

None

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

None

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

None

Footnote:

Members of Joint Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 18



  

Page | 3 

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)

X

Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)

X

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value and 
the impacts on the Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally?

X
Every effort is made to ensure that 
Salford providers are commissioned 
to deliver care for local residents.
Paper light programme has been 
implemented within the team to 
reduce paper usage and travel

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality Analysis 
(EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed) 

X

Legal Advice Sought X

Presented to any informal groups or committees 
(including partnership groups) for engagement or 
other formal governance groups for comments / 
approval? 

X

Quarterly reports that include this 
data are presented to the Service and 
Finance Group

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 19



Page | 4 

NHS Continuing Healthcare and NHS Funded Nursing Care Update

1. Executive Summary

This report gives an update on the delivery of NHS Salford CCG’s statutory duties in 
relation to the National Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare (CHC) and NHS Funded 
Nursing Care (FNC).

The update includes information on CHC and FNC activity, costs and the oversight of 
provider quality.

It outlines progress in respect of Personal Health Budgets and updates in respect of the 
CCG Quality Premium measures relating to CHC.

The outcome of a new self-assessment tool completed during the year for NHS England 
(Continuing Healthcare Assessment Tool – CHAT) is highlighted.

Representatives from the NHS Funded Care team have made significant progress in 
respect of the conversion from a heavily paper reliant process to a more digital and 
dynamic system that is patient and commissioner friendly but reduces the need for printed 
copies and duplication of documents. 

2. Background

2.1 NHS Continuing Healthcare ( NHS CHC) is the name given to a package of care that 
is arranged and funded solely by the NHS for individuals who are not in hospital and 
have been assessed as having a ‘primary health need’. CCGs are statutorily 
responsible for determining individuals’ eligibility for NHS CHC, using the National 
CHC and FNC framework.

2.2 To be eligible for NHS CHC, an individual will have substantial and ongoing care 
needs and these will relate mainly to health care needs. Eligibility does not depend 
on a specific illness or diagnosis, on who provides the care or where the care is 
provided.  

2.3 The CCG is has legal responsibility to ensure the National Framework is fully 
implemented in respect of assessment of eligibility for their registered population. 
Associated with this responsibility is the requirement to commission a person centred 
package of care for the eligible individual that meets their complex and or intensive 
healthcare and social care needs  

 2.4     The CCG’s responsibility extends to ensuring partnership agencies are also compliant 
with the National Framework and work in a cohesive way.

2.5 NHS Funded Nursing Care (FNC) is care provided by a Registered Nurse for people 
who live in a care home. The NHS pays a nationally determined rate directly to the 
care home as a contribution towards the cost of this Registered Nursing care. 

Page 20



Page | 5 

Individuals are eligible for NHS FNC if they have nursing needs but are not eligible for 
NHS CHC.

2.5 NHS Salford CCG has a dedicated ‘in house’ team that works across agencies and 
geographical boundaries to implement the National Framework on their behalf.

2.6  A variety of client groups are assessed as eligible for NHS CHC including older 
people, younger adults, mental health care service users, those with severe 
neurological conditions and those with physical disabilities.  There is an element of 
unpredictability in commissioning care for this range of clients, which is not a local 
issue as it is experienced regionally and nationally. 

2.7 During 2018/19 there has been an increase in referrals to the NHS Funded Care 
Team which has ultimately led to an increase in the number of individuals being 
identified as eligible for NHS CHC.

3. NHS CHC and NHS Funded Nursing Care in Salford

3.1 NHS Salford CCG directly employs a team, including several nurses, to manage the 
CHC and Funded Nursing Care process. They work closely with health and social 
care staff in Salford Royal Foundation Trust, other acute trusts, Manchester Mental 
Health Foundation Trust, Salford Care Homes, St Ann’s Hospice and home care 
providers. They also work less frequently with a range of care providers across 
Greater Manchester and beyond.

3.2 The required completion of the latest version of NHS England’s Quality Assurance 
Assessment tool (CHAT) has been undertaken and the relevant evidence uploaded 
into the system for the perusal of NHS England’s Quality Assurance Managers.    
NHS Salford CCG has submitted all the relevant information and a comprehensive 
‘deep dive’ assessment has been completed by representatives from NHS England.  
Additional information has been requested and the Initial feed-back was positive 
with no recommendations for further action required

3.3 There has been an increase in requests to arrange long-term care for individuals 
with providers outside Salford; all requests are considered on an individual basis,  
however consideration is always given in respect of ‘best value’ and whether it is in 
the best interests of that individual to be moved from their local community and their 
associated networks.  Circumstances that usually lead to individuals being placed 
outside Salford usually relate to the complexity of care required or proximity to 
family members.

3.4 There are two indicators included in the CCG Quality Premium scheme for 2018/19 
relating to CHC which are outlined below along with quarterly performance data:

2018/19
Target Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Indicator 1: In more than 80% of cases with 
a positive NHS CHC Checklist, the NHS 
CHC eligibility decision is made by the CCG 
within 28 days from the receipt of the 
Checklist (excluding fast track)

>80% 85% 93% 91% 100%

Page 21



Page | 6 

Indicator 2: Less than 15% of all full NHS 
CHC assessments take place in an acute 
hospital setting.

<15% 13% 13% 13% 15%

Indicator 1:   The Quality Premium threshold has been met throughout this financial year and 
continues to be an area closely monitored due to the impact from the provision of ‘Home First’ beds 
made in previous reports. 

Indicator 2: The Quality Premium threshold has been met throughout this financial year and as 
indicator 1 it continues to be closely monitored due to local bed availability and placement 
requirements of the individual. 

3.5 NHS Salford CCG working in partnership other agencies have introduced the ‘Home 
First’ initiative whereby individuals who ‘screen in’ for a formal consideration of 
eligibility for NHS CHC are discharged from the acute setting to the location of their 
choice.  The formal consideration for NHS CHC is then completed after the 
individual has ‘settled in’ to their new environment. Initially this resulted in a 
significant reduction in the percentage of considerations completed and less than 
10% were being completed in the acute settings.  

3.6      The National Framework clearly dictates to all authorities that individuals should not 
be screened for eligibility for an NHS CHC assessment whilst in the acute setting, or 
if they are receiving care in either an in-appropriate environment or where staff do 
not have the relevant skills and experience to deliver the type of care required by 
the individual.  Progress on this aspect of the process has been slow as this 
requires the breaking down of cultural barriers and re-education of some staff in the 
provider organisations and this work is resource intensive but ongoing. It also 
requires strong and consistent messages to be cascaded down to operational staff 
from senior managers from all the agencies.

3.7 In respect of making a decision in terms of eligibility within 28 days, an average of 
over 90% of cases met this requirement. 

 3.8 NHS Salford CCG is adhering to NHS England’s expectations whereby the default 
position for all CCGs nationally is that all individuals who are eligible for NHS CHC 
funding are offered a Personal Health Budget, although the uptake of the Direct 
Payment option remains negligible.

4 Service User and Family Experience

4.1 Nationally all CCGs continue to experience difficulty in measuring patient 
experience relating to the journey in establishing eligibility for NHS CHC as 
outcomes can be skewed dependent on if the individual was successful in their 
application for eligibility for NHS CHC funding or otherwise. However, positive 
feedback is received from patients and their representatives by the team.

4.2 Following the success of a patient experience project (PEACH – Patient Experience 
and Continuing Healthcare) implemented by Tameside and Glossop CCG during 
2017/8 NHS England is looking to roll this tool out nationally as part of the Service 
Improvement (SIP) Team Plan and initial discussions with the Engagement and 
Inclusion Team have taken place to roll this tool out within Salford.  A 
Personalisation Working Group has also been set up to increase the involvement of 

Page 22



Page | 7 

service users in all areas of healthcare including Personal Health Budget for NHS 
CHC.

4.3 NHS CHC continues to be the main source of complaints however they remain 
related to the outcome of the CCG’s decision when an individual has been found not 
to be eligible for NHS CHC.  Individuals are advised of the formal process for appeal 
within a detailed decision letter provided to them following the outcome of the 
meeting. Local arrangements are conducted through multi-agency review panels 
that examine each case in detail. Requests for the next stage of review are 
managed by NHS England and claimants now contact them directly.  To date, all 
previous cases that are small in number and that have been considered by NHS 
England have been found to be sound.  Therefore the decision made by NHS 
Salford CCG has been upheld.  In addition NHS Salford has been commended for 
their robust processes.

2018/19 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Appeals – Local Resolution Panel 0 3 2 1
Appeals – Independent Resolution Panel 0 0 0 0
Retrospective Referrals 1 2 0 1

4.4 In one recent case the relative of an individual made informal comments relating to 
potential improvements in the processes being used by the NHS Funded Care Team.  
Positive comments were also received.  The comments did reflect an area that would 
benefit from further clarification.  This individual has agreed to act as a ‘critical friend’ 
for the work and their views will be considered with the development of additional 
information relating to how an individual can claim repayment of care fees.

4.5      Patients in receipt of CHC are subject to regular review by the NHS Funded Care
Team as follows:

 Approximately 2 weeks after arrangements have been put in place for care
 6 weeks 
 3 months 
 At 12 month intervals or more frequently as recommended by the clinician 

dependent on the individual’s care needs. 

4.6 An integral part of all care reviews is to ascertain the experience of individuals and 
their representatives when they are in receipt of a care package irrespective of the 
provider.  The individual is always placed at the centre of the routine review and their 
views are captured and those of their representatives.  Any concerns expressed 
regarding the quality of care provision are addressed at that review.  Any themes or 
trends are captured and fed back to the provider with an expectation that an 
improvement plan will be developed and this is monitored closely by the NHS Funded 
Care team.  

4.7      The information relating to the quality of care delivered by care home providers is also 
fed into the multi-agency Quality Improvement Network.  Representatives from the 
NHS Funded Care team are active participants in this network and work closely with 
all agencies to support providers.  The information shared in respect of the quality of 
care provision promotes a proactive ‘early warning system’ where issues relating to 
quality are identified and acted upon.

Page 23



Page | 8 

5 Paper Light Programme 

5.1    The Office Manager for the NHS Funded Care Team is working closely with 
clinicians and an IT developer to implement a new digital system that is dynamic 
and captures ‘real time’ information relating to the Teams activities.  This continues 
to evolve and develop with an ethos of a whole systems approach being 
implemented in a staged process.  The programme is being overseen by a steering 
group and whilst there have been some issues to overcome, significant progress 
has been made. 

5.2 This new digital system reduces the need to print copies of a wide variety of 
documents and greatly reduces duplication of systems as well as providing an 
enhanced level of flexibility for Commissioners that promotes agile working.  The 
‘knock on effect’ of this is a reduction in costs, time, traveling distances and 
significantly contributes to the reduction of NHS Salford CCG’s carbon footprint.  
Unfortunately NHS England has suggested NHS CHC systems should aspire to be 
‘paperless’ and not a more realistic paper light.  This issue was discussed in detail 
at the recent NHS England ‘deep dive’ and further advice was sought with the 
paperless expectation being reiterated.

6. Salford NHS CHC and NHS Funded Nursing Care activity

6.1 The activity in respect of receipt of all referrals and any associated actions 
continues to increase.  The NHS Funded Care Team is working closely with 
Business Intelligence and IT to continue to expand and then test the newly 
developed data base and its associated applications.  This has a significantly 
increased functionality that will be able to support the generation of data that will 
meet the reporting requirements of NHS Salford CCG. 

Funded Care Team: Overall Activity - These figures detail the total activity received by the Funded 
Care Team per quarter. This is broken down into the various elements of the service in the 
subsequent tables. 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Funded Care Team: Overall Quarterly Activity 448 505 548 529

NHS Continuing Healthcare Referrals and Outcomes  - These figures highlight the total number of 
referrals received by the Funded Care Team where a formal consideration for CHC eligibility was 
required (patient ‘screens in) and the outcome following full assessment.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
CHC referrals for full assessment 147 166 168 167

Outcomes break down as follows:

Fast track decisions 83 90 96 100

Met criteria following full assessment 12 14 15 11

Didn’t meet criteria following full assessment 30 23 24 25

Page 24



Page | 9 

Funding ceased following full assessment 4 2 0 5
Cases withdrawn following full assessment 
process 18 28 29 24

Cases where outcome is still to be determined 0 9 2 2

Funded Nursing Care - These figures highlight the total number of assessments carried out by the 
Funded Care Team where patients did not meet CHC eligibility criteria (patient ‘screens out) but did 
meet the criteria for Funded Nursing Care Contributions.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
General Nursing 74 82 93 102

EMI Nursing 13 14 2 7

Residential Care / Homecare Package - These figures highlight the total number of assessments 
carried out by the Funded Care Team where patients did not meet either the CHC of FNC eligibility 
criteria but opted for a residential care package within a care home or a District Nursing care package 
within their own home.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
No nursing needs 49 52 52 59

District Nursing Input 1 0 0 2

Ad-Hoc Activity - Other areas of activity completed by the team relate to Safeguarding referrals or 
work generated from the full consideration process, such as eligibility appeals or the retrospective 
process.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Safeguarding Referrals 49 27 22 25

Appeals – Local Resolution Panel 2 3 2 1

Appeals – Independent Resolution Panel 0 1 1 0

Retrospective Referrals 2 3 0 3

Inappropriate Referrals – the number of referrals that could not be completed for a range of 
reasons, including; lack of informed consent, inadequate ‘best interests’ documentation, patients not 
being medically fit for discharge / assessment, patients still in receipt of treatment or rehab.

These are all classified as inappropriate referrals and are returned to the referrer with relevant 
comments or requests for further information.

Information detailing the source of inappropriate referrals can be provided if requested.
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Inappropriate Referrals 146 153 210 163

6.2        Nurse Commissioners continue to complete regular reviews of those individuals who 
have been funded either NHS CHC or NHS FNC to monitor patient outcomes and 
the quality of care provision.  A significant part of the continuing work load continues 

Page 25



Page | 10 

to be in respect of safeguarding 
issues and Nurse Commissioners and senior members of the team are an integral 
part of the interagency procedures. 

6.3      As previously reported NHS England has identified by using submitted data that 
NHS Salford CCG has one of the highest number of NHS CHC patients nationally.  
However in respect of the associated costs NHS Salford CCG remain in the lowest 
10th percentile of CCGs.  Due to being an ‘outlier’ in both of these aspects NHS 
England has asked that a member of their Service Improvement Team (SIP) visits 
NHS Salford for a ‘deep dive’.  These visits have concluded and to date, no further 
action has been advised as when the submitted data is triangulated with other local 
intelligence such as the incidence of heart disease and other long term conditions, 
the data was identified as being sound.

7    CHC Providers

7.1     Providers of NHS CHC are diverse and can range from District Nurses providing care 
in an individual’s own home to a nursing home or a highly specialist care facility if an 
individual has been assessed as having particularly complex needs.  

7.2 The tables below show the number of CHC placements in 2018/19 and then how 
much has been paid to each provider; the length of each placement may vary and 
has not been included.  The information presented has been balanced to the 2018/19 
finance ledger.

Table A, below, provides a cumulative count of placement activity within Salford for 2018/19 
financial year. 

Page 26



Page | 11 

Table B, below, provides a cumulative count placement activity within care homes outside of 
Salford but within the boundaries of Greater Manchester for 2018/19 financial year.

Page 27



Page | 12 

Table C, below, provides a cumulative count placement activity within care homes  outside of 
Salford and outside of the boundaries of Greater Manchester for 2018/19 financial year.

Routine Quality and Performance Assurance from Local Care Homes

7.3 All local CHC contracts contain performance and quality requirements (KPIs) and 
reporting requirements, detailing when, where and in what format reports should be 
submitted. 

7.4  During 2018/19, reporting information received from homes was variable and 
additional contract engagement with homes was required to make them aware of the 
contractual obligations of delivering routine quality, performance and activity 
information. 

7.5 To support improvements in this area, revisions to key contract schedules linked to 
routine reporting have been made. Where schedules are linked to a provider 
obligation or routine action, revision has focused on simplifying the process and 
removing any ambiguity.

7.6 Following submission of contract paperwork for 2019/20, the contracts team has 
arranged visits with each local CHC provider to establish a line of communication to 
the team, to offer support and to make clear to homes the potential contractual and 
financial consequences of not submitting required information.

7.7 It is anticipated that this will improve the quality and frequency of reporting, which in 
turn will support the routine monitoring of quality, performance and activity. Future 

Page 28



Page | 13 

reports will contain detail relating to provider reporting compliance and performance 
exceptions.

7.8 Routine reviews of each individuals care package are completed informally and family 
members or representatives are always invited to each review and encouraged to 
actively participate. In addition the individual’s representatives are also encouraged to 
contact the team if they feel their relative’s care needs have changed or if they have 
any concerns regarding the care delivered by the provider. This process helps to 
identify any issues or concerns quickly and ensure that appropriate action is taken. 
This also informs the local intelligence systems supporting the Quality Improvement 
Network not just by exploring evidence in respect of quality of care and those 
delivering it but also the management of care by providers, their responses to 
concerns and the overall systems and leadership evident within provider 
organisations. 

 
8. Comparative Data

8.1 Activity and finance data has been compared from 2017/18 to 2018/19 and is 
outlined in the tables below:

Salford Activity
CHC FNC CHC FNC

17/18 186 521 3,689,461 2,112,141
18/19 157 432 3,533,548 2,094,341
Difference -29 -89 £-155,913 £-17,800

Placements outside of Salford but within the GM Boundary
CHC FNC CHC FNC

17/18 50 27 897,664 24,536
18/19 45 50 1,160,184 74,469
Difference -5 +23 £262,520 £49,933

Placements outside of Salford and the GM Boundary
CHC FNC CHC FNC

17/18 12 4 762,236 5,427
18/19 7 11 717,277 21,379
Difference -5 +7 £-44,959 £15,952

8.2 There has been a small reduction in the costs of both CHC and FNC placements in 
2018/19 compared to 2019/20 and a reduction in the numbers of people receiving 
funding for these placements.  The numbers and costs of placements do vary from 
year to year and these figures are consistent with fluctuations seen in previous years.

9. Summary

9.1 Evidence is included within this report to provide assurance that individuals who may 
require CHC are being assessed in a timely way.  Where packages of care are 
required these are being sourced on their behalf and the quality of the care provided 

Page 29



Page | 14 

is being regularly reviewed.  The decision making process for individuals is robust as 
evidenced by the fact that no appeals made about the process have been overturned. 

9.2 NHS Salford CCG currently enjoys a good reputation across Greater Manchester and 
with representative from NHS England in respect of our approach to CHC and FNC.  
There is a proactive approach to referrals and a robust ‘case management’ ethos 
within the NHS Funded Care Team. The team have forged excellent relationships 
with partner agencies and proactively request support and provide this when 
required.

10. Recommendations

10.1 The Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to:
 note this update report on NHS Continuing Healthcare and NHS Funded Nursing 

Care in Salford

Jacquie Purser 
Head of NHS Funded Care Team

Page 30



 

1

Adult Commissioning Committee

AGENDA ITEM NO 8
PART 1 

Item for Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)  

DATE OF MEETING 9 OCTOBER 2019

Report of: Karen Proctor

Date of Paper: 2 October 2019

Subject: Adult Commissioning Report

In case of query 
Please contact:

Judd Skelton 0161 212 5632
Harry Golby 0161 212 6161

Purpose of Paper:

This paper provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning 
and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult Commissioning Committee 
are kept abreast of developments and progress.

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



 

2

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

This paper provides an overview of a number of 
key or emerging areas of commissioning and 
provision relating to adult health and care to 
ensure Adult Commissioning Committee are 
kept abreast of developments and progress.

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

N/A

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

N/A

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH OR EXTREME 
RISKS FACING THE 
ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT ARE 
THEY AND HOW DOES THIS PAPER 
REDUCE THEM?

N/A

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

N/A

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

N/A

Footnote:

Members of – Adults’ Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 32



  

3

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)

X

Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)

X

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how these 
will be managed) 

X

Legal Advice Sought X
Presented to any other groups or committees, 
including Partnership Groups
(Please specify in comments)

X

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 33



4

Adult Commissioning Report

1. Executive Summary

This report provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning 
and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult Commissioning Committee 
are kept abreast of developments.

Items in this month’s report include:

 Integrated Care Transformation Programme
 MoreLife UK

Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note and discuss this overview of a number of 
key or emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care. 

2. Integrated Care Transformation Programme

2.1. The Integrated Care transformation programme for adults is funded from Greater 
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership transformation monies (£18.3 
million) 2016/17 to 2019/20. The programme is due to end March 2020 and therefore 
this report provides an update on project progress and planning for transition, as 
projects reach the end of their testing phase. 

2.2. Progress with each project is outlined in the table below.  Three of the ten projects 
have been completed to date; Back Pain Project, Advice and Guidance and Urgent 
Treatment Centre pilot. Both Back Pain and Advice and Guidance pilots introduced 
changes to ways of working and are now continuing as routine practice. 

2.3. A number of projects recently reported twelve month evaluations and are currently 
due to end in early 2020. This includes Enhanced Care Team, Urgent Care Team, 
Housing Officer and Falls pathway. 

2.4. In addition to evaluation reports for each project, an end of programme evaluation is 
planned and will be published in April 2020. This will collate overall impact of the 
programme, describe achievements, challenges and learning and make 
recommendations. An expert independent review panel, comprising of three 
evaluators from outside greater Manchester who have relevant expertise, has been 
convened to review the programme evaluation prior to publication.

Transformation 
Project 

Update 

Salford Urgent 
Care Team 

The team provides a two hour response to referrals from the Ambulance 
Service and other health professionals to avoid transfer of people to hospital 
A&E, where they do not need to attend A&E. Referrals to the team are 

Page 34



5

showing an increasing trend month on month reaching their highest number 
to date in July at 302 referrals. The twelve month evaluation was presented 
to Adult Advisory Board (AAB) on 27th August. The project test is currently 
due to complete early in 2020.

Enhanced 
Care Team 
(ECT)

This multi-professional team provide a programme of tailored interventions 
to people with complex health and social care issues at increasing risk of 
decline/ deterioration for up to 12 weeks The caseload and referrals are 
currently stable with the team managing around 100 patients per month. The 
team are currently working with GP practices in three neighbourhoods. The 
twelve month evaluation was presented to AAB on 13th August. The project 
test is currently due to complete early in 2020.

MSK/ Back 
Pain Pathway 

The project for back pain community clinics ended on the 31st December 
2018 and the final evaluation report has been presented to AAB during April 
2019. This project changed the setting of provision of clinics from hospital to 
community and there are no implications for future funding. The back pain 
project showed impact on diagnostics ordered and some potential impact on 
A&E attendances for back pain. 

Falls 
prevention 
pathway 

This redesign of the falls pathway has introduced a single point of entry for 
falls services and enhanced prevention activities. Referrals continue to 
increase for falls service and were at their highest yet in August 2019 (290). 
Falls emergency hospital admissions have seen a decline since the project 
started.  Following presentation of the 12month evaluation transformation 
funding is continued until the 31st December 2019. 

Enhanced 
Carers Support

This project provides an enhanced carer support package for the carers of 
patients identified in a hospital setting to give extra support post discharge. 
A small increase in average numbers seen by the service are evident from 
the latest quarter of data and there are now seven new carers receiving the 
package each month.  A communications campaign is on-going to increase 
awareness of service following the roll out to all wards at Salford Royal in 
March 2019.   

Housing 
Officer 

The Housing Officer provides support to people with housing difficulties who 
are identified in a hospital setting. The twelve month evaluation was 
completed in July and suggests positive impact on supporting people with 
housing needs to leave hospital. This includes reduction in delayed transfers 
of care due to housing. Transformation funding is continued until the 31st 
December 2019.

Advice & 
Guidance 
(A&G)

Advice and Guidance refers to when GPs seek advice from hospital 
specialists regarding their patients care and treatment. The transformation 
project was a test of a process to systematically and consistently seek 
advice and guidance. It utilised an IT system to seek and receive advice that 
is already used by GP practices. The project achieved the target for roll out 
to specialties but did not reach the number of requests anticipated. The 
evaluation was reported to AAB on the 25th June 19 and the project has 
transitioned to A&G continuing as routine. Further monitoring after the 
project closed does however show number of requests are continuing to 
increase monthly and latest data from August shows the highest number of 
A&G requests since the launch.

Page 35



6

Neighbourhood 
Health and 
Care 
Leadership 
Forums 

This project has formed five integrated health and care neighbourhood 
leadership teams for adults health and social care, in order to develop 
integrated working for these services in neighbourhoods. These leadership 
teams include representation from primary care, community nursing, mental 
health, social work, therapists and VCSE sector. The teams have 
commenced a leadership development programme and identified an 
improvement project to work together on. Links are actively being made with 
Council neighbourhood work through regular meetings to share plans. 
Neighbourhood sharing events provide opportunities to facilitate sharing of 
plans and also learning. The next Integrated Care neighbourhoods sharing 
event is planned for the 16th October 2019. Council leads are members of 
the Neighbourhoods Integrated Care Steering Group and will also be 
contributing to the sharing event on the 16th October.

Centre of 
Contact 

This project is testing an MDT triage team and implementing a team training 
programme in order to facilitate improved integration in the Centre of 
Contact. Temporary staff are in post giving capacity for the team to receive 
the training programme. The training programme is on track and case 
studies have been shared with Advisory Board, to provide insight into the 
role of the MDT triage team. The project is due to run until March 2020.  

Neighbourhood 
Mental Health 
Project

GP Practice Severe Mental Illness registers are being reviewed for this 
project in order to identify those who require a physical health check. Twenty 
one GP practices are currently involved with the project and thirteen practice 
register reviews are completed at September 2019. As a result of the mental 
health register review people are being contacted and invited for physical 
health checks. This project is due to run until March 2020.  

2.5. Adults Advisory Board has commenced a review process to support ACC in planning 
for post transformation. Transformation projects have been grouped alongside inter-
related core commissioned services into three review bundles. For each bundle a 
task and finish group has been meeting to review need and service provision 
alongside evaluation findings. The bundles reflect transformation priorities and are:

 Urgent Care
 Extended Care (community step up services and hospital step down services)
 Neighbourhoods

2.6. Investment proposals are currently being developed for Extended Care and 
Neighbourhoods, in order to maintain impact and what has worked well with the 
transformation schemes. These investment cases consider current related core 
commissioned services in order to propose integrated new models of care for post 
transformation. The investments cases will ensure there is no duplication and that 
pathways (and relationships between services) are both seamless and clear. The 
overriding aims continue to be; to improve patient experience, improve outcomes and 
ensure effective use of resources.

2.7. The Extended Care and Neighbourhoods investment proposals are scheduled at 
Adults Commissioning Committee in January 2020. 

Page 36



7

2.8. The Urgent Care bundle of services is currently being reviewed by a partnership task 
and finish group who are meeting two weekly. The group are currently scoping urgent 
care demand in order to develop and propose an urgent care model, which will 
include same day urgent care provision. An urgent care engagement event is 
planned with clinicians on the 13th November 2019.

   
3. New Specialist Adult Weight Management Service – MoreLife UK

3.1. 61.9% of adults in the UK, and 66.2% in Salford, are overweight or obese. Obesity is 
associated with higher risk of many health problems including heart disease, type 2 
diabetes, certain cancers and mental health. Obesity is costly to health and social 
care and has a wider economic and social impact.  

3.2. National policy advocates a whole systems approach to obesity.  Part of that 
approach includes commissioning weight management services.  Tier 3 adult weight 
management services are specialist (non-surgical) treatment services.  The Salford 
service is for obese adults, BMI of 35kg/m² and above, referred by a GP.  Clients are 
case managed through a sustained programme of support, delivered by a multi-
disciplinary, specialist team; utilising both face to face and group based interventions.  

3.3. MoreLife was awarded the contract in early 2019 following a procurement exercise 
led by Salford CCG on behalf of Salford, Bury, Tameside & Glossop, Manchester and 
Stockport.  MoreLife is a subsidiary company of Leeds Beckett University with over 
20 years’ experience in delivering evidence-based weight management initiatives in 
more than 50 areas internationally.

3.4. Over the past few months the CCG has been working with other localities, MoreLife 
and the previous provider (ABL Health Ltd) to implement the new contract.  The new 
contract came into effect from 1 October 2019.  GPs have been advised of the 
change and provided with new referral guidelines, referral forms, etc.

3.5. The CCG’s Service Improvement and Contracting teams will continue to work 
together with MoreLife to monitor the contract to ensure the specification is delivered.  
Adult Commissioning Committee will receive updates as required.

4. Recommendations

4.1 Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note and discuss this overview of key or 
emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care.

Harry Golby, Assistant Director of Commissioning 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                          

Adult Commissioning Committee 
PART I 

AGENDA ITEM NO: 9

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)  

09 October 2019 

Report of: Annette Donegani,
Senior Service Improvement Manager

Date of Paper: 01 October 2019

Subject: Planned Care Update

In case of query 
Please contact:

Annette Donegani
annette.donegani@nhs.net
0161 212 4272

Strategic Priorities: Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to:

 Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services)
Children’s and Maternity Services
Primary Care
Enabling Transformation

Purpose of Paper:                                   

The purpose of the paper is to update members of Adult Commissioning Committee on the 
performance of the following Planned Care access standards:

 Referral to Treatment (Waiting) Times
 Diagnostic Test Waiting Times
 52-Week Waiters
 Waiting Lists

The paper also considers the reasons for non-compliance against NHS constitution 
standards and informs about recovery plans in place to improve performance.

Page 39

Agenda Item 9

mailto:annette.donegani@nhs.net


 

                                                          

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

Monitoring NHS provider’s performance against 
NHS constitutional standards ensures Salford 
GP registered residents receive a level of 
service they should expect to receive. 

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

N/A

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

N/A

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT 
ARE THEY AND HOW DOES THIS 
PAPER REDUCE THEM?

N/A

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

N/A

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

N/A

Footnote:

Members of Adult Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 40



  

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)



Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)



Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value and 
the impacts on the Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally?



Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality Analysis 
(EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed) 



Legal Advice Sought 

Presented to any informal groups or committees 
(including partnership groups) for engagement or 
other formal governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)



CCG Scheduled Care Delivery Board
CCG Governing Body

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 41



Planned Care Update

1. Executive Summary

The NHS Constitution states that patients have the right to access certain services within 
maximum waiting times.  The maximum waiting time for most non-urgent consultant led 
treatments is 18 weeks.  The national 18 week referral to treatment (RTT) standard is 
supported by other standards for planned care such as diagnostic waiting time and zero 
tolerance on 52-week waiters.

The vast majority of patients are seen within these national waiting time standards.  
However increasingly services struggle to achieve the targets and performance is 
deteriorating locally, regionally and nationally.

This report explains the standards, provides an overview of Salford CCG performance and 
aims to provide assurance with regards recovery plans to bring performance in line with 
national standards.

2. Introduction 

2.1 The CCG’s Planned Care work programme aims to help ensure Salford’s patients are 
seen within national referral to treatment time (RTT) standards.  RTT is defined as 
the time from a patient’s referral, usually by a GP, to an NHS consultant led service.  
The planned care programme therefore considers a range of routine NHS services 
with booked appointments or interventions taking place in a range of settings mainly 
hospital outpatient or inpatient services, but also community settings and GP 
practices where these are part of the patient pathway. 

2.2 Urgent referrals and those to mental health and cancer services are outside the  
scope of the planned care programme.

3. Standards for Planned Care

3.1 The following access standards currently apply to NHS Planned Care services:

 Referral to Treatment (RTT) – the time from the date of the referral to the 
start of treatment in a non-urgent consultant led NHS service. At least 92% of 
patients to have an RTT less than 18 weeks.  If this is not possible 
the NHS must take all reasonable steps to offer a range of suitable alternative 
providers

 Diagnostic Tests and Investigations - Diagnostic tests and investigations 
are used to identify a patient's condition, disease or injury.  A diagnostic test 
often forms part of a patient’s pathway from referral to treatment.  The NHS 
standard diagnostics performance measure is that less than 1% of patients 
should wait 6 weeks or more for a diagnostic test.  Where diagnostic waiting 
times exceeed this national standard it will be difficult to achieve RTT 
standards.

Page 42



 52-Week Waiters – NHS England introduced a zero tolerance of any RTT 
waits of more than 52 weeks in 2013/14

3.2 These standards represent the upper limit of how long a patient should expect to 
wait; the vast majority of patients will be seen sooner.

3.3 A relatively new standard relates to the size of waiting lists and requires that the 
number of patients on NHS waiting lists do not exceed the number on the waiting list 
as at end of March 2018.

3.4 Appendix I lists the treatments not included in the 18 week RTT Standard and a list of 
the key NHS diagnostic tests.

3.5 CCGs and individual NHS Trust are performance managed against these standards.  
Most Salford patients receive planned care at Salford Royal Foundation Trust, 
however some are cared for in other hospitals, equally some patients of other 
localities are cared for at SRFT.  For that reason the planned care programme tends 
to track both Salford CCG and SRFT performance. 

4. Analysis of Performance 

4.1 Appendix II shows Salford CCG performance at August 2019 for RTT (18 week 
waits); RTT (52 week waits); Diagnostics and Waiting Lists

4.2 In summary all standards are failing to meet national targets, however it should be 
noted that the Salford CCG position reflects both the GM and national situation.

4.3 Salford CCG position is as follows for Planned Care standards:

 18 week RTT performance year to date is 87.8% against the 92% standard
 52 week RTT performance shows 5 breaches against the zero standard
 Year to date diagnostics performance is at 5.87% against the less than 1% 

standard
 Waiting list year to date as at August 2019 is 20.7% (4,814) higher than end 

of March 2018

5. Diagnostics Issues and Recovery

5.1       The CCG has not met this target since March 2019. 

5.2 Typically when taken together Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) and Non-
Obstetric Ultrasound (NOUS) are responsible for 95% of SRFT and 92% of CCG 
diagnostic breaches.

5.3 Current SRFT MRI performance issues are due to:

 Growing MRI waiting lists
 Reduced capacity:

o MRI scanner at Oaklands no longer available

Page 43



o SRFT MRI scanner breakdown (25 July) – amounting to approx. 500 
to 600 lost slots per month - SRFT report that this machine has now 
been condemned and a new scanner is needed

 National workforce shortages
 Pay differentials between SRFT and the Independent Sector reducing  

potential to offer overtime to support waiting list initiatives
 National Pension changes, annual and lifetime allowances mean some high 

earners (i.e. consultants) effectively pay a much higher rate of tax if they 
work overtime

5.4 Current SRFT NOUS performance issues are mainly due to increasing demand and 
lack of opportunity to put on waiting list initiative clinics (WLIs) due to national 
pensions contribution issues.

5.5 Actions being taken include:

 SRFT continue to secure additional MRI and NOUS capacity from alternative 
providers including both NHS and Independent Sector

 Additional MRI capacity at Fairfield and Stockport has resulted in freeing up 
MRI capacity at SRFT for Salford patients

 SRFT prioritise cancer and in-patient MRI requests; however the 
consequence will be longer waits for routine GP MRI referrals

 Business case for urgent replacement of condemned MRI scanner currently 
going through SRFT governance

5.6 In view of the deteriorating performance and recovery required the CCG are not 
anticipating achieving this target in 2019/20.  Salford CCG has provided two 
diagnostic update position statements to GM Directors of Commissioning and will 
provide further updates as necessary until the situation improves.

6. RTT and Waiting List Issues and Recovery 

6.1 The number of Salford CCG patients on waiting lists (at all providers) and length of 
waiting times for treatment to commence continues to increase. Both these measures 
are deteriorating on a month by month basis – more referrals are being made 
resulting in longer waiting times to be treated.

6.2 The target is for waiting lists to be below the numbers on March 2018 lists for all 
providers apart from Manchester Foundation Trust which will be measured against 
their March 2019 figure.

6.3 Analysis of the 28,071 Salford CCG patients’ on waiting lists shows increases for all 
major medical and surgical specialties including cardiology, gynaecology, trauma & 
orthopaedics (T&O), urology and “other”.  These five specialties account for 80% of 
the overall increase in waiting lists.

6.4 The CCG 18 week RTT performance remains below the 92% target.  Salford CCG 
position reflects GM CCG and GM Trust positions, all other main GM providers and 
CCGs continue to show a decline in RTT performance over the last 5-month period.

Page 44



6.5 All clinical specialty waiting lists and waiting times are continuing to grow; the main 
reason being the national pension contributions issue which is reducing Provider’s 
ability to put on additional Waiting List Initiative clinics.  The CCG have escalated the 
local effects of this to GM. It is also being reported that this is now having an impact 
on Provider’s ability to maintain routine clinic/surgery lists. 

6.6 The CCG in particular are tracking a number of clinical specialty waiting list and 
waiting times performance including T&O and cardiology.  Main issues and recovery 
plans for these specialties are as follows:

T&O:
 SRFT specific T&O planning group is in place to address the loss of 

orthopaedic capacity as a result of MFT serving notice on SRFT to 
provide services out of Manchester Orthopaedic Centre 

 Oaklands and SRFT are putting on additional clinics when staffing, 
consultant and anaesthetic cover will allow 

 Review of T&O referrals – Business Case recommending T&O 
referrals triaged by MSK in development

Cardiology:
 Cardiology/Rapid Access Chest Pain Clinic continues to experience 

workforce issues which are impacting on both numbers on waiting list 
and increasing waiting times for patients – the CCG are receiving 
feedback from Salford GPs about the unacceptable and worsening 
waiting times their patients are currently experiencing

 SRFT are looking for ways to address the issues but this is being 
compounded by long-term sickness absences

 SRFT are also addressing issues within A&E as increasing numbers of 
referrals are generated there, usually precautionary but often 
inappropriate

6.7 In view of the deteriorating performance and recovery required the CCG are not 
anticipating achieving these targets in 2019/20.  

7.  Recommendations 

7.1 The Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to:

 Read and note the Planned Care Update report 

 Note Salford CCGs performance against national standards

 Note the issues and recovery plans that are in place to improve performance

Annette Donegani  
Senior Service Improvement Manager
Salford CCG

Page 45



APPENDIX I

1. LIST OF TREATMENTS NOT INCLUDED IN THE NHS 18 WEEK REFERRAL TO
TREATMENT STANDARD:

The following treatments and services are not covered by 18 week RTT standard:

 fertility treatment
 obstetrics services (the care of pregnant mothers and their babies before and after the birth)
 organ and tissue transplantation
 direct referrals to Allied Health Professionals (AHPs)
 dental treatment provided by undergraduate dental students
 direct access referrals to diagnostic services

2. LIST OF KEY NHS DIAGNOSTIC TESTS

Diagnostic tests and investigations are used to identify a patient's condition, disease or injury.

The key NHS diagnostic tests and investigations are:

 Non-Obstetric Ultrasound
 MRI Scan
 Colonoscopy
 Gastroscopy
 Flexi-Sigmoidoscopy
 Echocardiogram
 Urodynamics
 Audiology
 Barium Enema
 CT Scan
 Peripheral Neurophys
 Sleep Studies

Page 46



APPENDIX II - PERFORMANCE

RTT – 18 WEEK WAITS

The table below shows 2019/20 RTT performance for Salford CCG (Salford registered patients 
referred for non-urgent treatment, irrespective of which NHS Provider they are referred to).

18 week RTT performance for Salford CCG shows:

- % seen within 18 weeks for August is 85.9% which is below the target of 92% 
- YTD position is below target at 87.8%
- All the main GM NHS Providers show performance below the 92% target
- Pennine Acute performance has significantly dropped from 90.8% in July to 85.7% in August
- This seems to be related to Ear, Nose & Throat (ENT) performance from 91.7% in July to 

74.5% in August
- Performance at Manchester University FT continues to decline with August performance at 

80.2% as does Bolton FT which is at 84.1%
- Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust performance has dropped slightly from 88.2% in July to 

86.8% in August

RTT – 52-WEEK WAITS

- There were 2>52 week breaches for August, making  5 overall in total for 2019/20 YTD

WAITING LIST 

 There were 28,071 Salford patients on a waiting list in August 2019 
 The numbers on waiting lists are increasing when compared to the March 2018 baseline 

figure of 23,257
 The numbers on a waiting list in July was 27,360 – this increased to 28,071 in August
 The table below compares the CCGs performance at the end of March 2018 with end of 

August 2019 for each clinical specialty
 This shows an overall increase in waiting lists in this 17 month period of 4,814 (20.7%)

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Year to Date

Total 26,098 26,860 27,202 27,360 28,071 135,591

Number within 18 weeks 23,187 23,791 23,991 23,938 24,124 119,031

Number over 18 weeks 2,911 3,069 3,211 3,422 3,947 16,560

% within 18 weeks 88.8% 88.6% 88.2% 87.5% 85.9% 87.8%

Direction of travel      

Page 47



Treatment Function
March 
2018

August
2019

Ear, Nose & Throat (ENT) 1,418 1,689
Rheumatology 423 643
General Surgery 1,087 1,634
Dermatology 2,019 2,716
Urology 1,241 1,809
Trauma & Orthopaedics 3,050 4,088
Gynaecology 1,652 1,796
Cardiology 1,205 1,564
Neurosurgery 17 79
Ophthalmology 1,439 1,561
General Medicine 160 47
Neurology 8 6
Plastic Surgery 202 235
Cardiothoracic Surgery 42 63
Other 6,595 7,492
Geriatric Medicine 82 59
Gastroenterology 1,816 1,985
Thoracic Medicine 801 605
Total 23,257 28,071

DIAGNOSTICS

 The table below shows that Salford CCG is failing this NHS standard
 Year to date 1,731 (5.87%) of Salford CCG patients were waiting 6 weeks or more for a 

diagnostics test  

Measure  Apr May Jun Jul Aug Year to
date

Number waiting 6 weeks or more 309 302 391 349 380 1,731

Total waits 5885 5941 5694 6270 5708 29,498

Patients waiting 6 
weeks or more 
for a diagnostic 
test - Standard is 
less than 1% Performance 5.25% 5.08% 6.87% 5.57% 6.66% 5.87%

 Typically the majority (95%+) of diagnostic tests take place at Salford Royal NHS FT (SRFT) – 
for example in August there were 380 Salford CCG diagnostic breaches of which 370 took 
place at SRFT 

 The remaining 10 August diagnostic breaches took place at Manchester FT (4); Pennine 
Acute Trust (2) and Royal Bolton (3)

Page 48



 The table below shows the number of breaches for Salford patients at SRFT in the last 5 
months highlighting the significant increases for MRI, Non-Obstetric Ultrasound and 
Cystoscopy 

 There has been a slight improvement in MRI, however this does remain high

SRFT breaches for Salford patients
Diagnostic Test APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST

Non Obstetric Ultrasound 106 99 215 170 176

MRI Scan 144 150 127 128 109
Colonoscopy 1 0 5 10 30
Gastroscopy 6 3 6 4 19
Flexi-Sigmoidoscopy 2 1 1 5 17
Echocardiography 2 4 5 3 10
Urodynamics 3 7 7 9 5
Cystoscopy 14 11 6 2 4
Audiology Assessments 0 0 0 0 0
Barium Enema 0 0 0 0 0
CT Scan 1 0 0 0 0
Dexa Scan 0 0 0 0 0
Electrophysiology 0 0 0 0 0
Peripheral Neurophys 0 0 0 0 0
Sleep Studies 1 1 1 0 0
Total 280 276 373 331 370

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 11 September 2019
	5 Elective Orthopaedic Capacity - Harry Golby - 20 minutes
	7 NHS Continuing Healthcare & NHS Funded Nursing Care Annual Report - Jacquie Purser - 15 minutes
	8 Briefing Update - Adult Commissioning Report - Karen Proctor - 15 minutes
	9 Briefing Update - Planned Care - Annette Donegani - 10 minutes

